IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 83,73 1

HARRY FRANKLIN PHILLIPS,

Appellant,

٧.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT COURT, IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Billy H. Nolas Fla. Bar No. 806821 Julie D. Naylor **Fla.** Bar No. 794351 437 Chestnut Street Suite 501 Philadelphia, PA 19 106 (215) 451-6500

COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

REQUEST FOR ORALARGUMENT

Appellant respectfully requests that the Court allow oral argument in this capital appeal.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Harry Franklin Phillips was convicted of first degree murder in the death of Bjorn Thomas Svenson. Phillips v. State, 476 So. 2d 194 (Fla. 1985). The trial court imposed a death sentence. This Court affirmed. Id. Mr. Phillips received ineffective assistance of counsel at capital sentencing and the death sentence was vacated. Phillips v. State, 608 So. 2d 778 (Fla. 1992).

a. The State's **Resentencing** Case

Lt. Gary Handcock of the Metro-Dade Police Department testified that two black males had committed a robbery at a liquor store (R. 276). He described several specific and random details about this liquor store robbery (R. 277, Altaquo ugh he was not present during the incident, he speculated that they had prior knowledge of where the money was (R. 277-78); described what the manager had done before the robbery (R. 278); suggested that "the subjects" knew their way around the store (R. 278); testified that the robbers had guns (R. 279); talked about the robbers going through the warehouse area (R. 279); gave his opinion about their thinking (R. 279, "You had to know your way through the warehouse"); testified about what different people saw during the robbery (R. 279, "They were seen by different people along the way"); said that an employee had been tied up (R. 279); said that an employee chased them and a "shoe came off one of the subjects" (R. 279); and testified about their driving away in a damaged car (R. 279-80).

A "BOLO" was put out (R. 280). Within two days, **a** similar car was stopped (R. 280). Mr. Phillips was in the car (R. 280). Mr. Phillips signed a Miranda Rights Waiver and a consent to search and agreed to go to the police office (R. 281). He agreed to have his photo taken (R. 281). He wafted at the office while the police showed his photo to people (R. 281). People at the scene identified his photo (R. 281). Lt. Hondcock arrested Mr.

Phillips (R. 281). Mr. Phillips agreed to a shoe imprint (R. 282). The shoe from the scene was matched to Mr. Phillips by the police (R. 282). Mr. Phillips was convicted of the robbery (R. 282). The defense posed no questions to Lt. Handcock, but objected to the testimony, first in a pretrial objection to nonstatutory aggravation, then during the testimony, and then after the testimony (See e.g., R. 289-90). Defense counsel also argued that certified copies of convictions were all that was allowed at the original sentencing and additional details and witnesses should not be allowed in the resentencing (R. 290). The objections was overruled (R. 290).

Nanette Brochin/Russell is a parole officer (R. 283). She first talked about what probation and parole officers do (R. 283-84). In 1980, she **was** assigned to the north Dade office (R. 284). Tom Svenson **was** her supervisor and dealt with problems she had with cases (R. 284). She lived in Mirimar (R. 284), ten minutes from the parole office where she worked (R. 285). She drove a green Toyota which she parked in the office lot (R. 285). She worked from 8 until 5 (R. 285).

At the time, she lived with Mike Russell, another parole officer; they are now married (R. 286). In June-August, 1980, Mr. Phillips was a parolee (R. 286). "He was doing fine. I **had** no problems with him. He was reporting. He was cooperative." (R. 286; 287, "I had no problems."). He got **a** job (R. 287).

She talked about how a parole officer discusses matters with a supervisor if there are problems and then with the Florida Parole Commission (R. 287-88). She said she thought Mr. Phillips was in violation of parole in November, 1980 (R. 288). Defense counsel's objection was overruled (R. 288). She **was** asked to describe the violation (R. 289). Defense counsel objected, reiterating his pretrial motion "to exclude evidence of nonstatutory aggravating circumstances" (R. 289). The trial court overruled the

objection (R. 289). The prosecutor and the trial judge agreed that the defense would have a "standing objection" to non-statutory aggravating evidence so that there would be no interruptions (R. 289).

Ms. Brochin then specifically testified about her belief that Mr. Phillips was in violation of parole (R. 290). She said he "followed" her into a grocery store on a Friday night (R. 290). She was shopping (R. 290). She went home from work and then to the grocery store (R. 290), a Publix (R. 291). The Publix was a "few blocks" from the Dade County line -- technically in Broward County (R. 291).

I noticed Mr. Phillips. I was in the grocery store and he approached me indicating that he wanted to talk to me about something and I told him it wasn't the time or place to do that. We had previously set on appointment on that Monday to discuss anything that he wonted to discuss at that time. He insisted on speaking with me and after several moments I told him okay, that I would talk with him after I finished my grocery shopping and I did finish the grocery shopping and checked out. I brought my groceries out to the car. The bag boy at Publix helped me out to the car and loaded my groceries and Mr. Phillips was standing by the car (R. 291).

Mr. Phillips asked to talk to her again (R. 292). He asked if he could sit in the car with her and talk (R. 292). She said, "No, you can talk to me right outside of the car" (R. 292). She sat in the car (R. 292). He asked her for a kiss (R. 292).

She testified that "parolees giving kisses" to their officers is "not proper behavior" (R. 292). She told him that she was terminating the conversation and he was to report to her office on Monday (R. 292). She went home (R. 292).

At her house, she and Mike Russell (who was also a parole officer, R 294) noticed a car while they unloaded groceries (R. 292). The car's lights were off (R. 292-93). The car drove by twice (R. 293). Ms. Brochin testified that it was Mr. Phillips' car (R. 293-94).

After they went inside, Ms. Brochin and Mr. Russell called the Mirimar Police Department and Mr. Svenson (R. 294). The next day, Saturday, Mr. Phillips called her at home

with some bizarre story about having followed me and known where I was living because he was checking out for somebody else something about Mike Russell. This apparent woman that he had met previously wanted to do some harm to Mike Russell. Do harm or something so he had known where I lived and it was just a bizarre story (R. 296).

Ms. Brochin recalled "[s]omething about he had met a woman at a park and she wanted to paralyze Mike Russell" and that Mr. Phillips said he was coming around to check (R. 296). Mr. Phillips, according to Ms. Brochin, said he called to tell her about this situation with Mr. Russell and the woman (R. 313).

On Monday, Mr. Phillips had a pre-scheduled appointment with Ms. Brochin (R. 298). He come to the office (R. 298). Tom Svenson, Mike Russell, Nanette Brochin, an investigator and "some other people" were also there (R. 298). Mr. Svenson "indicated to Mr. Phillips that he was going to reassign him to another officer" (R. 298). "He was instructed to stay away from me and not to call me...and not to report to me for any reason" (R. 299). She wrote Mr. Phillips up (R. 299). One month later, in December, 1980, Mr. Phillips was arrested for this "technical violation for visiting [Ms. Brochin in Broward" (R. 299). Ms. Brochin testified at the revocation hearing at the Lake Butler prison, along with Mike Russell and Tom Svenson (R. 300-01). She told the parole commissioners 'about the technical violations" regarding "the trip to Broward County" and "the phone call about a woman wanting to do harm to Mike Russell. And seeing me in Broward County and asking me for a good night kiss" (R. 30 1). Parole was revoked (R. 302).

^{&#}x27;Defense counsel again renewed his pretrial objections (R. 300-0 1).

Mr. Phillips **was** released from prison in August, 1982 (R. 302). Another parole officer was assigned (R. 303). Mr. Phillips went to Ms. Brochin's office "asking to speak to me" (R. 303). She refused to see him (R. 303). She told Mr. Mcmgoso (of the parole office) and Mr. Svenson (R. 303-04). On August 23, 1982, she and Mr. Russell heard sounds (R. 304). "[A]bout four bullets" had been shot at their curtains (R. 304). They called the police (R. 305). They did not see who fired (R. 305). She had around 100 parolees (R. 284; 311). She thought Mr. Phillips had fired.

One week later (August 3 1, 1982) she appeared in the courthouse on a matter unrelated to Mr. Phillips (R. 305). She noticed Mr. Phillips by the courthouse elevator (R. 306). She went up to the fourth floor on the escalator (R. 306). Mr. Phillips was up on the fourth floor and she saw him when she got off the escalator (R. 306-07). She did not speak to him, but told a bailiff that Mr. Phillips was following her (R. 307). She finished her "business here [in court] and went across the street" to the parole office (R. 308).

Mr. Phillips was scheduled for a meeting at the parole office later that day with administrator Rivers, supervisor Svenson, supervisor Robinson and "some prison inspector" (R. 308). Ms. Brochin was "at the meeting after" (R. 308). They spoke to Mr. Phillips (R. 308). They told Ms. Brochin that "he was told again to stay away from me, not to have any contact with me. He had no business being around me" (R. 308). She and Mr. Svenson went to lunch (R. 310). He didn't have money for lunch (R. 310). That evening, Mr. Svenson was shot (R. 309-10).

On cross-examination, Ms. Brochin testified that Mr. Phillips was a model parolee during the first seven months of her supervision (R. 312).² The first "incident" was on November 14, 1980, at the supermarket (R. 3 12). Harry asked her for **a** "good night kiss"

²Ms. Brochin acknowledged that she does not know who shot Mr. Svenson (R. 3 10).

(R. 312). Harry never threatened her (R. 312). He was a cooperative parolee with her (R. 312-13). In 1982 (when he went to the parole building to see her after his release) he made no threats (R. 3 13). He had no violent incidents and was revoked for a technical (being at the Broward County Publix and asking for a good night kiss) violation (3 14). He had a job (R. 3 14). She has violated many other people (R. 3 14).

when she walked into the courthouse, Mr. Phillips was already there (R. 3 15). He did not follow her in (R. 315). He was by the public elevators first on the first floor and then on the fourth floor; did not threaten her; and did not say anything to her (R. 3 15). He was scheduled to be in the parole building across the street later that morning (R. 316). The courthouse and parole buildings are public buildings (R. 3 16).

Mike Russell testified that he is a parole officer (R. 3 17) and supervisor (R. 323). Ms. Brochin told him about seeing Mr. Phillips at the supermarket (R. 318). Mr. Phillips then drove by their house (R. 318). He knew Mr. Phillips was one of Ms. Brochin's parolees (R. 319). He was not there when Mr. Phillips called Ms. Brochin on Saturday about the woman who Mr. Phillips said had threatened Mr. Russell (R. 320). Mr. Russell said he does not know such a woman.

Technical violations were filed and a parole warrant was issued for Mr. Phillips' arrest (R. 320). Mr. Russell, Ms. Brochin and Mr. Svenson testified at the revocation hearing a-t Lake Butler (R. 320-21, 322). Mr. Phillips had been arrested on the technical violation on December 13 (R. 321). After Mr. Phillips was taken into custody he called Mr. Russell and "told me he understood what was going on. He understood why he was in jail and that he had no problem with me and I had nothing to fear from him" (R. 321).

Mr. Phillips did not call while he was in prison (R. 322). When he was re-paroled he reported to the parole office (R. 323). Mr. Russell was **a** supervisor in the office

(R. 323). He saw Mr. Phillips waiting for cm appointment at the intake office shortly after the re-release (R. 323). They made eye contact but did not speak (R. 323-24). Mr. Russell contacted his supervisor about seeing Mr. Phillips (R. 323-24). A few days later, Mr. Russell saw Mr. Phillips again during an appointment at the office (R. 324). Mr. Phillips wonted to see Mr. Russell (R. 324). Mr. Russell did not talk to him and reported him to supervisors (R. 324). Supervisors Wear and Rob met with Mr. Phillips (R. 324). They later told Mr. Russell that they had told Mr. Phillips to stay away from Ms. Brochin and "that he has another parole officer to report to" (R. 324).

Days later, shots were fired at Mr. Russell's and Ms, Brochin's curtains (R. 325). Mr. Russell called the police (R. 325). Mr. Russell does not know who fired the shots (R. 326).

Mr. Russell testified on cross that the supermarket incident was two years before Mr. Svenson was shot (R. 326). On the Monday following the supermarket (good night kiss) incident, Mr. Russell spoke to Mr. Phillips (R. 326-27). Tom Svenson was present (R. 327). Mr. Phillips was told to stay away from Nanette Brochin and was assigned to Gene Brown, another parole officer (R. 327). At the meeting, Harry **was** not threatening or violent; he listened to what they said (R. 327). However, his parole was revoked (R. 327). After the revocation, he called Mr. Russell and said "he understood what was going on and he doesn't have any hard feelings" (R. 328, 329). Mr. Phillips never threatened Mr. Russell (R. 329).

As a parole supervisor, Mr. Russell had hundreds, thousands of parolees (R. 330). Many are violent (R. 330). Mr. Russell has violated many (R. 330). When Mr. Phillips come to see Mr. Russell ofter re-release, Mr. Russell would not see him (R. 330). He had Mr. Weor see him (R. 330). Mr. Phillips caused no problem, no threats or violence, and

just left (R. 330). Mr. Russell does not know who shot at this house (R. 331). Mr. Phillips "never threatened violence to Mr. Svenson" (R. 332).

Benjamin Rivers is a parole supervisor (R. 333). On November 21, 1980, he and Tom Svenson met with Mr. Phillips at a parole office (R. 334). They spoke to Mr. Phillips about phone calls to Ms. Brochin (R. 335). They gave Mr. Phillips "instructions... centered around him being . . . near the county line where Nanette [Brochin] would be to and from work He was instructed that he was not to be seen there again . . . " (R. 335-36).

On August 31, 1982, Mr. Rivers, Mr. Svenson and other supervisors had another meeting with Mr. Phillips in the parole building across the street from the courthouse (R. 337). The meeting **was** scheduled for 9:00 a.m. (R. 338). Mr. Wear said there had been a problem with Mr. Phillips (R. 337). Ms. Brochin called at 8:00 a.m. that morning and said that Harry **was** in the courthouse (across the street) and "she felt that he was following her" (R. 338). Supervisors Rivers and Robinson went over to the courthouse and "talked with Nanette [Brochin] and tried to calm her down . . . [W]e did not see Harry Phillips. We went back to my office and about that time Mr. Phillips and Mr. Svenson arrived because he **was** supposed to be at the meeting with me that morning" (R. 339).

Mr. Rivers and Mr. Svenson met with Mr. Phillips (R. 339). He **was** told "not to go to the north office which was the office that Nanette and Tom Svenson worked in and he was not to be seen in that **area** . .." (R. 339). He was told to stay away from Mr. Russell (R. 340). Mr. Rivers told him that he, Mr. Rivers, would violete him if he failed to follow Mr. Rivers' instructions (R. 340).

Mr. Rivers testified on cross-examination that **a** parole officer's schedule (<u>e.g.</u>, court appearances, scheduled meetings) is not known to the public or parolees (R. 341-42). The information is not given out (R. 342). On August 31, 1982 (the day Mr. Phillips

was in the courthouse), Mr. Phillips' oppointment was for 9:00 a.m. and Mr. Phillips was there a few minutes early (R. 342). He sat in the waiting area until Mr. Svenson and Mr. Rivers were ready (R. 342-43). When they met, Mr. Phillips did not show anger towards or threaten Mr. Rivers and Mr. Svenson (R. 343).

During a break in the proceedings, defense counsel renewed his standing objection to such matters, including the testimony of Mr. Russell and Mr. Rivers, as relating to non-statutory aggravation (R. 344). The judge indicated that the standing objection is clear (R. 344).

Reggie Robinson is a parole supervisor (R. 347). He supervised Mike Russell (R. 347). Mr. Robinson, Mr. Rivers and Mr. Wear met with Mr. Phillips in 1982 and told him to stay away from the north office and not to "come around any [parole] office unless it was deemed necessary" (R. 348). They also told him to stay away from Mike Russell (R. 348). They told him he would be violated if he did not follow these instructions (R. 348).

The day after shots were fired into Brochin/Russell's house, Mr. Robinson went to Mr. Phillips' home and searched for weapons (R. 348). Mr. Robinson, Mr. Phillips and Mr. Phillips' mother were there (R. 349), as was supervisor McKinney (R. 350). Permission was given for Mr. Robinson to search (R. 349). Mr. Svenson showed up an hour later (R. 348). "[T]his was serious" and they wanted the "big boss" (Mr. McKinney) to be there (R. 350).

While they were there, "Mr. Phillips became very outraged and went towards Mr. Svenson and Mr. McKinney. At that time I pulled him back and told him to calm down, but he just kept shouting and shouting" (R. 350). Mr. Phillips was upset over how he perceived them acting towards his mother. He "didn't want Mr. Svenson there" (R. 350). "I told him that his mother had no complaints . . . and that the questions that we were asking were not something for him to get upset about" (R. 350). Mr. Phillips was still

somewhat upset over how he perceived his mother was treated although Mr. Robinson did not see Mr. Svenson "do anything abrupt" to his mother (R. 351). Nothing else significant happened that day (R 351).

One week later, there was a scheduled meeting with Mr. Phillips at the parole office across from the courthouse (R. 351). That was the day that Nanette Brochin complained about seeing Mr. Phillips in the courthouse (R. 351). Mr. Rivers, Mr. Wear, Mr. Svenson, Mr. Robinson (all supervisors) and Mr. Phillips were at the meeting (R. 352).

Mr. Robinson then testified about conversations he had "with Chabrier . . . She had called . . . I don't remember the exact date, but she called and asked what could someone do in order to remove residue if they fired a weapon" (R. 352). Mr. Robinson said that Ms. Chabrier said "that she was talking with Mr. Phillips and he started asking her these questions and she knew he was on parole and she called the office" (R. 352). Mr. Mangoso was sent out to take a statement from her (R. 353). She said something about Mr. Phillips saying that they had fired a "gun in the woods or something of that nature" (R. 353-54).

Mr. Robinson sow Mr. Phillips again on September 1, 1992, the day after Mr. Svenson was shot, when Mr. Phillips was being interviewed by detectives (R. 353). Shooting a gun in the woods was a parole violation (R. 354). Mr. Phillips was taken into custody on that violation (R. 354). Mr. Robinson also questioned him about the previous evening (when Mr. Svenson had been shot) (R. 354). Mr. Phillips said he was at Winn Dixie until about 8:30 p.m. and then went home (R. 354).

On cross-examination, Mr. Robinson testified that Mr. Phillips lived with his mother, Laura Phillips (R. 355). Mr. Phillips shared his earnings with his mother (R. 355). Mrs.

Phillips said they could search, Harry did not object or protest and they were allowed to search (R. 355-56). They found nothing (R. 356). Mr. Svenson then arrived (R. 356).

Mr. Svenson started questioning Harry's mother again (R. 356, 357). Harry got and this questioning (R. 357). Mr. Robinson tried to calm Harry down (R. 358). "Harry kept repeating over and over to Mr. Svenson that you have no right to talk to my mother" (R. 358). Harry did not have a problem with Mr. Svenson being there, but was upset at the questioning of his mother (R. 358).

On September 1, 1982, when Mr. Robinson interviewed Mr. Phillips (R. 358), Mr. Phillips told him that he was at Winn Dixie getting groceries until about 8:30 p.m. on the day Mr. Svenson was shot (R. 359). Mr. Phillips was cooperative and agreed to describe his day (R. 359). He said that at 5:30 p.m. he picked up his sister at the library and took her home (R. 359). He then went to Winn Dixie, picked up some groceries at around 8:00 and returned home at about 8:30 (R, 358-59). Harry was cooperative during the interview (R. 360).

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