#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED

SEP 13 1996

CASE NO. 83,731

CLERK, SUPPLEME COURT
By \_\_\_\_\_\_\_

HARRY FRANKLIN PHILLIPS,

Appellant,

vs.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

AN APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH
JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
CRIMINAL DIVISION

## ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

FARIBA N. KOMEILY
Assistant Attorney General
Florida Bar No. 0375934
Office of Attorney General
Department of Legal Affairs
Post Office Box 013241
Miami, Florida 33101
(305) 377-5441

#

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

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

- I. The claim that the trial court did not follow the procedures set forth in <u>Spencer</u>, <u>infra</u>, and did not conduct an independent review of the evidence, is unpreserved. Moreover, the claim is refuted by the record, and no prejudice has been shown.
- II. Claims of erroneous instructions to the jury are unpreserved. The complained of instructions were all given without objection or at the request of defense counsel. Moreover, no prejudice has been demonstrated as the substance of the instructions was in accordance with this Court's precedents.
- III. The claim regarding "hindering governmental function" jury instructions is not preserved for appeal. Additionally, this factor was properly applied on the basis of the evidence below.
- IV. Claims regarding prosecutorial comments and evidentiary presentation have not been preserved for appeal, and, furthermore, relate to matters for which the evidence was admissible.
- V. The claim regarding jury selection has not been preserved for appeal. Additionally, a full **Neil** inquiry demonstrated that the prosecutor's peremptory challenges were supported by valid race-neutral reasons.
- VI. The claim regarding the vagueness of the CCP aggravator has been repeatedly rejected by this Court. Additionally, the factor was properly applied on the basis of the evidence herein.

### **ARGUMENT**

I.

## THE REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH IN <u>SPENCER V.</u> STATE, <u>INFRA</u>, WERE FOLLOWED.

The Appellant first argues that the trial court had prepared its order prior to hearing "evidence and argument", and, without "recessing" to consider the appropriate sentence, in violation of Spencer v. State, 615 So. 2d 688 (Fla. 1993). See brief of Appellant at p. 61. This claim has not been preserved for appeal, as there were no objections based upon Spencer or the arguments raised on appeal herein, in the court below. Moreover, the claim is without merit as it is refuted by the record.

### In <u>Spencer</u>, this Court held:

...We contemplated that the following procedure be used in sentencing phase proceedings. First, the trial judge should hold a hearing to: a) give the defendant, his counsel, and the State, an opportunity to be heard; b) afford, if appropriate, both the State and the defendant an opportunity to present additional evidence; c) allow both sides to comment on or rebut information in any presentence or medical report; and d) defendant an opportunity to be heard in person. after hearing the evidence and argument, the trial judge should then recess the proceeding to consider the appropriate sentence. If the judge determines that the death sentence should be imposed, then, in accordance with section 921.141, Florida Statutes (1983), the judge must set forth in writing the reasons for imposing the death sentence. Third, the trial judge should set a hearing to impose the sentence and contemporaneously file the sentencing order.

615 So. 2d at 690. This Court has also, however, noted that the procedural requirements in <u>Spencer</u> were not the basis for reversal in that case:

In reversing the convictions at issue in Spencer and remanding that case for a new trial, we noted that the trial judge had not followed the sentencing procedure quoted above. The failure of the trial judge to follow that procedure in Spencer, however, was not the sole reason for our reversal in that case. In fact, in Spencer, the trial judge committed numerous including error of the engaging in parte communications with the prosecutor regarding Spencer's sentence.

### <u>Armstrong v. State</u>, 642 So. 2d 731, 738 (Fla. 1994).

The record herein reflects that there was an approximately two week interval between the penalty phase before the jury and the sentencing hearing before the trial court. At the conclusion of the penalty phase before the jury, both parties stated that they would file sentencing memoranda, setting forth the aggravating and mitigating factors to be considered by the trial court. (T. 814-15). Both parties in fact did serve such memoranda upon each other and the court prior to the sentencing hearing. (R. 126-139; 141-48).

At the commencement of the sentencing hearing, the trial court first specifically inquired whether either party was going to call any witnesses. (T. 819). Both parties stated that they were not presenting any additional evidence. <u>Id</u>. The prosecution and the

defense then presented arguments. (T. 819-23). The defense argued that this was a circumstantial evidence case and that resentencing jurors had had difficulties with the issue of whether the defendant was even guilty of the crime charged. (T. 821-22). The trial judge then, prior to pronouncing sentence, expressly addressed the defense argument and noted that there was no law prohibiting a conviction of guilt based upon circumstantial evidence. (T. 823-6). The trial judge also expressed regret that some of the resentencing jurors had not followed his instructions and explanations that the prior finding of guilt was binding at resentencing. Id. The trial judge noted that one of the two jurors herein, who had initially refused to vote and then voted for life imprisonment, had written a letter to him after the rendition of the verdict. (T. 824). The juror had asked the judge to explain how the jurors "could vote on the death penalty when they didn't believe Mr. Phillips was quilty to begin with. " Id. The trial judge addressed the inherent problem in a resentencing proceeding where a witness recites the facts of the guilt phase in "two hours", whereas, "[i]t took us almost two weeks of testimony in the original case. They [resentencing jurors1 didn't hear the parade of witnesses as to Mr. Phillips' guilt." Id. The trial judge noted that after he had explained the extensive nature of testimony by various witnesses at the original trial, the juror in question had

expressed satisfaction as to guilt, and stated, "I wouldn't have voted the way I did had I known." (T. 825).

Having thus addressed defense counsel's only argument at the sentencing hearing, the trial judge then stated that he had prepared an order which was still unsigned. (T. 826). The trial judge then added, "I haven't heard anything this morning to change my mind." Id. The trial court then handed out his proposed order and read his findings of fact to the attorneys, prior to signing the order. (T. 826-44). There were no objections, before or after the recitation of findings, on any grounds based upon Spencer, lack of a recess, or otherwise. The State thus respectfully submits that the Appellant's arguments based upon Spencer, supra, are not preserved for appeal and thus procedurally barred. See, Steinhorst v. State, 412 So. 2d 332, 338 Fla. 1982) ("in order for an argument to be cognizable on appeal, it must be the specific contention asserted as legal ground for the objection, exception, or motion below.") .

Moreover, this claim is without merit. There is nothing in **Spencer** which prohibits the trial judge from considering the evidence and arguments presented at the penalty phase before the jury, and preparing preliminary findings as to that evidence, prior to the sentencing hearing. Thereafter, the trial judge has the duty to consider evidence presented to it at the sentencing hearing

and address same prior to imposing sentence. However, in the instant case, the defense did not present any evidence, and, its arguments of lingering doubt, which are not a proper consideration at sentencing, were addressed by the court prior to pronouncement of sentence. That the judge may have prepared preliminary findings prior to the sentencing hearing, made its determination after the hearing, and then finalized its order, is not error, and, in fact in accordance with this Court's prior precedent. See <a href="Hernandez v.State">Hernandez v.State</a>, 621 So. 2d 1353, 1357 (Fla. 1993) ('The purpose of the contemporaneity requirement is to implement the intent of the legislature -- to ensure that written reasons are not merely an after-the-fact rationalization for a hasty, visceral; or mistakenly reasoned initial decision imposing death".).

Finally, in the event that this Court deems that a procedural violation did occur in this case, the State submits that no prejudice has been demonstrated. See, Armstrong v. State, 642 So. 2d at 738 ('Further, although, in the instant case, the trial judge may not have followed the procedure we set forth in Spencer, we find no prejudice to Armstrong under the circumstances of this case. Almost all of the arguments and evidence Armstrong presented

See e.g., <u>Hitchcock v. State</u>, 578 So. 2d 685, 690 (Fla. 1991)reversed on other grounds, 614 So. 2d 483 (Fla. 1993) (no right to have lingering doubt about a defendant's guilt considered as a mitigating factor).

judge, either at trial or at the hearing on Armstrong's motion for new trial, or were without merit. Moreover, the record reflects that the trial judge allowed Armstrong an opportunity to present evidence at the sentencing hearing. Additionally, none of the other errors at issue in Spencer are present here."). This claim is thus unpreserved for appeal and without merit.

The appellant has also argued that the trial judge did not engage in a "meaningful" or "independent judicial weighing", because he "verbatim" adopted the State's sentencing memorandum, in violation of Spencer, supra, Patterson v. State, 513 So. 2d 1257 (Fla. 1987) and Layman v. State, 652 So. 2d 376 (Fla. 1995). Again, this claim was not raised in the court below and is thus unpreserved for appeal, Steinhorst, supra; See also Spencer at 615 So. 2d 689-90 (defense counsel objected and moved to recuse the trial judge, where the state attorney had participated in drafting the sentencing order and the order was prepared prior to defense counsel having had an opportunity to be heard); Nibert v. State 508 So. 2d 1, 4 (Fla. 1987) (no reversible error where, 'defense counsel did not object when the Court instructed the state attorney to reduce his [sentencing] findings to writing."). As noted previously, the defense had prior notice of, and had been served with the State's sentencing memorandum prior to the sentencing

hearing. At the hearing, the trial judge, after ascertaining that there was no additional evidence and addressing the defense argument, first gave copies of his proposed order to both parties, and then read his findings in open court, **prior** to signing his proposed order. (T. 826-844). There were no objections by the defense on any of the points now raised on appeal - i.e. that the trial judge had adopted the State's memorandum or that his findings lacked independence. This claim is thus unpreserved for appeal.

Moreover, the instant claim is also without merit. First, contrary to the Appellant's assertion, the sentencing order is not a "verbatim reproduction" of the State's memorandum. Although the Appellant has set forth the memorandum and the order side by side and stated that, "[a]ny differences are highlighted in bold," the record reflects that several paragraphs in both the State's memorandum and the order have been omitted and not set forth in the Appellant's comparison, highlighted or otherwise. See e.g. R. 129-30, SR. 174-5 and Appellant's brief at p. 63. The trial judge did, however, adopt the State's recitation of the record evidence and law in support of the aggravating and mitigating case circumstances, with revisions to reflect his own findings, and after declining the State's requests as to the weight to be accorded to each aggravator. The trial jude also specifically stated that it had, "independently reviewed and weighed the

evidence." (SR. 188-9).

The above adoption of the record evidence and case law was not erroneous and does not reflect any lack of independence. The judge in the instant case had presided over the original trial<sup>5</sup> and drafted an extensive sentencing order detailing the evidence and case law as to each aggravator and mitigator at said time. of said order has been attached to Appellee's brief as Exhibit A. A comparison of this original sentencing order and the State's memorandum at resentencing, reflects that the memorandum set forth the same record evidence and substantially the same case law with respect to the aggravators as that contained in the original order In its memorandum, the State also argued that by the trial judge. the trial court should independently review and weigh the evidence. (R. 137-8). Moreover, the defense, who was afforded the same opportunity to present a memorandum, did not present any contradictory evidence with respect to the aggravators in its memorandum. See defendant's sentencing memorandum, (R. 141-8). Likewise, with respect to the mitigation findings, the resentencing order sets forth substantially the same evidence recited in the defense sentencing memorandum, as well as that set forth in the original sentencing order. The Appellant neither in the court

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> The same judge had also presided over the extensive prior post conviction proceedings in this case.

below, nor indeed in this Court, has presented any argument or indicia of inaccuracy in the evidence or case law recited in the resentencing order.

Thus, the trial judge's unobjected to adoption of accurate record evidence and case law in its resentencing order, with appropriate revisions, which evidence and law was substantially the same as that prepared by the judge himself in his original sentencing order and was in conformity with the evidence cited by the defense, made after furnishing the same notice and opportunity to both parties, is not error. See <u>Anderson v. Bessemer City</u>, 470 U.S. 564, 572, 84 L.Ed. 2d 518, 527, 105 S.Ct. 1504 (1985) ("even when the trial judge adopts proposed findings verbatim, findings are those of the Court and may be reversed only if clearly erroneous."). The Appellant's reliance upon Spencer, is unwarranted, as that case involved participation by the prosecutor in the drafting of the sentencing order on an ex parte without notice or any opportunity to be heard by the defense. Likewise, Patterson and Layman, supra, relied upon by the Appellant, involved situations where at the sentencing hearing the trial judge announced a sentence of death without specifying any aggravating or mitigating factors or any facts underlying the decision, and then delegated the drafting of the sentencing order to the prosecution, without any input from the defense.

the instant claim is unpreserved and without merit.

Lastly, the Appellant has argued that the trial judge had "predetermined" a sentence of death, because, during the course of addressing the defense argument as to the resentencing jurors' difficulty with the issue of guilt, the judge had stated, 'I don't know that I would even accept the jury verdict of 12 nothing for life imprisonment". (T. 825). Again, there was no objection, and no such argument was made in the court below. This contention is thus unpreserved for appellate review. Steinhorst supra. Moreover, this claim is without merit. As seen above, the statement itself, which was made after the rendition of the jury's recommendation, reflects that there was no predetermination. Additionally, the Appellant has neglected to mention the trial judge's other remarks, made prior to the jury's recommendation, where he had stated that in light of his prior experiences, he would not override a jury recommendation of life. (T. 54). Clearly there was no "predetermination" of a death sentence. All of the issues in the instant claim are thus unpreserved and without merit.

# THE CLAIM OF IMPROPER INFLUENCE AND MISLEADING THE JURY IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED AND WITHOUT MERIT.

The Appellant contends that the trial judge's remarks and instructions were erroneous. The record reflects, however, that these remarks and instructions were not objected to and were in some instances given at the request of defense counsel. The issue is thus unpreserved for review. Steinhorst, supra. Furthermore, the substance of the instructions given reflects that they were in accordance with this Court's precedents and not erroneous.

The Appellant first complains that, during voir dire, the trial judge informed the jurors that the defendant had previously been found guilty by a different jury and that the penalty phase had to be retried due to legal technicalities. (T. 82-3). The record reflects that said instruction was given at the request of and with consent from defense counsel. Prior to the commencement of voir dire, defense counsel requested that the trial judge fashion a response to potential questions from the venire as to the time gap between the sentencing hearings in the instant case:

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